

Minutes of OFMC General Membership Meeting – September 7th, 2019 – Held at OFMC Field.

Board members present:

Dom DiDomenico - President, Mark Haggard - Vice President, Ray Smith – Treasurer, Jim Blue – Secretary, Jesse Hinds – Safety Officer, Don Slavinski - Safety Officer. Dick Turner – Rep, Becky Paluzzi – Rep, Tony Paluzzi – Field Marshall

Called to order at 10:00 AM w/ pledge led by Dominic DiDomenico - President.

Minutes for the August 2019 Meeting were accepted after a motion by Don Southard and a second by Richard Kersul.

The Treasurers Report, by Treasurer Ray Smith, showing net available finances of \$23,325.33 as of August 31st, was accepted on motion by Don Southhard with second by Richard Kersul.

New member Russell Holt introduced himself. He has flown before but would like a "refresher." It was suggested he see Robert Vey, our Chief Flight Instructor

New member packs were handed out to Dawna Baker and Chris Holly. The one for George Borowsky will be mailed.

Dom reviewed the new signs approved by the BOD and the incidents leading to Paul Manning's suggestion for the signs. Dom noted the gate had been left open again and reminded those present about our expensive equipment and possible vandalism. Art Smith reiterated there was no flying during mowing and possibly that could be added to the signs. He pointed out that there was no such rule written anywhere in the By-Laws, Field Rules nor posted anywhere which can and has created hard feelings when applied.

The Summer's End on the 14th will include a Swap meet with no charge for tables. Jesse is the CD and will take volunteers. See him after the meeting. The CAPS don't appear to be participating any longer.

Dom said the defibrillator was checked last week and a new battery was ordered since the current one is at 20%.

Volunteers for mowing are always welcome.

Dom reviewed the upcoming event and swap meet at the Flying Gators in Gainesville.

Around the Table:

All passed except Mark who reviewed the AMA Leader Member letter regarding Club By-Laws and lengthy suggestions on importance of promoting the Club for good will with community and recruitment purposes. (Attachment 1).

From the Floor:

Paul Manning said there was an article by Dave Scott on the AMA website about fostering a more active flying field (Attachment 2). Discussion on the subject followed. Dominic stated previous youth programs didn't bring in new members. Richard Rivera suggested a Summer Camp (he would volunteer to participate.)

A member stated there was a safety related incident where a plane was coming at him but he didn't hear any warnings (distance related). This being a problem was acknowledged.

Willard Lee asked if the upcoming election was going to be by email or mailed ballot. Dom replied that the decision had not been made.

Tom Getz asked, again, that the striped area in front of the defibrillator be kept clear. Dom displayed the unit and showed how to get it initiated. Always call 911!

Chris Holly asked about an electric gate at the entry to the field. Dom replied that in response to previous suggestions, it was determined there were too many problems to make it viable.

A motion to adjourn was made by Dick Turner. The motion was seconded by Jim Steenson. The meeting was adjourned at 10:34AM.

Jim Blue, Secretary

Submitted September 10, 2019

ATTACHMENT 1

You're receiving this email because of your affiliation with the Academy of Model Aeronautics.

AMA Flight School | AMA Foundation | AMA Safety Guide | 1-800-IFLYAMA

ACADEMY OF MODEL AERONAUTICS

The largest model aviation association in the world!

Thursday, September 5, 2019

Greetings,

Here is your Leader Member Minute (LMM). This LMM might take a bit longer at your meeting.

When was the last time that your club bylaws were reviewed by your officers? Do new members know where to find the bylaws? Are the club bylaws being followed? This might be a good time to remind your club officers to review the club's bylaws.

Clubs are required to have a set of bylaws on file with AMA. Your bylaws should comply with AMA's minimum recommendations, and all club matters need to be handled in accordance with those bylaws. If your club makes any revisions to its bylaws, please forward an updated copy to AMA right away.

Thanks for your attention to this and if you have any questions or ideas for a future Leader Member Minute, please feel free to contact me.

Scott Anderson

AMA National Leader Member Coordinator pscottanderson@gmail.com

AND NOW THE LEADER MEMBER MINUTE

(you may simply read this to your club)

How is your club received by your community? Are you gaining members or losing them? Is your club friendly to new or prospective members? Below are some ideas by Eric Williams for promoting a healthy club membership.

- 1. Always seek ways to keep your club in the public eye and continuously seek new members. A wise man once said, "A club without signs is a sign of no club."
- 2. Establish a relationship with your local mayor or town supervisor, as well as other local elected officials. Have a cookout and invite them to your field.
- 3. Create an external club newsletter that you regularly email to local elected officials, school administrators, science/tech/STEM teachers, local scout troops, the local VFW and other veterans' groups, the fire department and rescue squad, and other local civic groups and community organizations. Doing this helps expose the community to your club and helps the club establish new friendships and relationships. It also helps cultivate new members!
- 4. Create a one-page flyer about your club and what you fly. Invite the public to come to your field and discover model aviation. This is your club's "sales brochure."
- 5. Have your club embrace a local charity and have an event just for it to raise funds and awareness for the charity. Be certain to also invite local elected officials and the local news media to the event! This helps demonstrate that your club is not just a model aircraft club, but a civic organization that contributes to the community!
- 6. Participate in local parades, community days, and other multiorganization events.
- 7. Paste a label with your club's contact information on the front of your old Model Aviation magazines. Leave these issues at your doctor's waiting room, your barbershop, local coffee houses, auto repair shops, etc.
- 8. Many companies have local groups of their retirees that meet monthly, or for special events. Invite these groups, and/or the local VFW, veterans' clubs, the Elks club, and similar groups of people who have time and money on their hands that might be looking for a hobby or a pastime.
- 9. Signs are critical. Unless you're restricted, have a sign at your club inviting people to call or email for information.
- 10. Websites work. Be certain that your club has an up-to-date website that is inviting and exciting, with contact details that are easy to find.

- 11. Create a club <u>Facebook</u> page. Keep it up to date and, of course, prominently include the club's contact information. Include photos and video of your club's activities. Social media is a very powerful tool for promoting.
- 12. Choose an individual who is outgoing, friendly, and who gets along with everyone. Delegate this person as the club's welcoming committee and contact person for the general public.

Questions about your membership? — Call Member Services at 800-435-9262 or email membership@modelaircraft.org

www.modelaircraft.org

© 2019 Academy of Model Aeronautics.

5161 E. Memorial Dr., Muncie IN 47302. Tel.: (800) 435-9262; Fax.: (765) 289-4248 — All rights reserved.

For problems with this email please contact websupport@modelaircraft.org.

To unsubscribe Click Here. Or manage your subscriptions

This email sent to: mhaggard3@tampabay.rr.com

ATTACHMENT 2

Fostering a More Active Flying Club in the Modern Era - Part 1

By Dave Scott. Owner/Instructor, 1st U.S. R/C Flight School

Introduction

Starting approximately 15 years ago, many model airplane clubs started seeing a decline in membership, fewer new people joining, and interested visitors to the flying field often not returning. This trend continues to this day. Whenever this subject is brought up, the usual justifications related to the economy and peoples' changing interests are given as to why this is a sign of the times, as if nothing can be done about it.

I visit a lot of clubs throughout the Midwest and elsewhere on behalf of my flight school, and despite all the standard reasons people give to justify their club's decline, I know of several clubs that are currently thriving, and most importantly have a large percentage of members that actively fly. Whether large or small, near cities or rural, the successful clubs that I visit all display very similar (easily copied) characteristics that the struggling clubs I visit do not, if not the opposite. The aim of this 2-part article is therefore to highlight the tendencies on display at clubs that do well at acquiring and retaining members, and conversely, why others are in a state of decline. By doing so, I hope to present several easily adopted solutions to help stem the decline and promote club growth.

Of course, those who feel that the membership has no role in their club's decline will probably take offense to some of the club behaviors that I will shine a light on, whereas I'm certain that those who are members of thriving clubs will think this article merely states the obvious.

Before anyone decides that what works for other clubs won't matter because your club members are older and you can't get new members, for the sake of discussion, let's say that your club sponsor's a model display at a mall or hardware store. As a result, 5 enthusiastic new people show up at your flying field the following weekend expressing interest in joining the club and flying. Is your club prepared to accommodate them and thereby retain them as members? Or, is your club stuck in a pattern of telling newcomers that they'll first have to learn how to set up an airplane, then, depending of the availability of the instructor(s), they can expect some crashes and to make any number of trips to the flying field before they'll be able to fly on their own. Of course, to the veteran members of the club that all sounds perfectly normal. However, as many clubs are finding out, that no longer works in today's instant gratification society where so many other activities are vying for peoples' discretionary time and promising to deliver immediate fun.

1. Thus, the first significant trait on display at successful clubs in the modern era is that their leadership is constantly promoting flying! For example, when a potential new member visits the flying field, the club leaders do everything they can to get that person in the air as soon as possible, or at least ask him or her to accompany them while they fly.

The point is, an interest in airplanes and flying is what primarily draws people to the sport, and it is what R/C aviation offers that they can't get anywhere else (especially since the training requirements and cost of full-scale aviation have become prohibitive for most people).

The typical busy person today enters the sport to have fun, as well as for the freedom that flying represents and as an escape from the stress of real life. The reason for joining a club is mainly to have access to a well kept dedicated flying site and access to more experienced modelers for help. The camaraderie and everything else that goes with being a club member is always secondary to flying at the beginning. Furthermore, to the consternation of many veteran modelers, the typical R/C pilot today looks at the process of setting up an airplane as mainly a means to fly, and would prefer to not spend a lot of time working on their airplanes.

Recognizing all this, effective club leaders focus on "accentuating the positives" whenever they encounter a potential member or interested spectator, such as, a dedicated runway to fly off of, experienced members to help answer questions, and the fact that technology is making it easier and cheaper than ever before for people to enjoy the sport. I.e., they're like any good car salesmen who smartly pitches the cars best features in order to elevate a person's enthusiasm before getting into the weeds of price, fees, etc.. Failing clubs, on the other hand, tend to jump right into bringing up dues, prohibitive rules, duties, costs, etc., whenever an interested visitor/potential member shows up at the field, and then wonder why the person never came back.

2. It has to be said that if the reason for the club's existence (a dedicated environment to fly model planes) becomes no longer the main focal point, the primary reason to join or remain part of the club no longer exists. In these cases, the non-flying majority wing of the club will invariably steer the focus and resources of the club to activities not related to flying, such as club politics and alike, causing people who were originally drawn to the sport to have fun flying to have little reason to come back. Of course, there will always be conflicting interests and politics in any organization, but they are far less noticeable when there's a lot of flying taking place in the club.

Herein is the rub; For a variety of reasons, such as seldom having a plan before flying and the deemphasizing of fundamentals in favor of the latest technology and design, the flying skills of the average club flyer typically plateau within 3-5 years. As a result, those who don't become discouraged or lose interest often turn to constant tinkering and acquiring new equipment to get their kicks. That would be fine, except when constant tinkering is presented to the average newcomer as standard operating procedure, what they mainly see are an endless series of obstacles that get in the way of flying and fun. As these perceived obstacles chip away at their enthusiasm, or as the result of a negative experience like a club member disassembling their airplane rather than helping get it in the air, reasonable people will start thinking about other activities that don't involve so many hurdles. The conundrum that many clubs are therefore facing today is this: While the veteran members act as though it would literally take the fun out of the hobby if everything worked and nothing needed to be changed, newcomers and those trying to improve their flying skills would consider that to be ideal.

Of course, if a newcomer is himself inclined toward tinkering, he won't find a better outlet than R/C aviation. However, all too often veteran flyers forget how intimidating it is to be newbie and how much more there is to learn than anyone expects. Thus, the temptation early on to impress your newbie audience by sharing the setup expertise you developed over many years can prove highly daunting for the newcomer who entered the sport hoping to start flying right away.

Therefore, effective club leaders, motivated by wanting each member to have a positive experience and thereby raise the likelihood of them remaining active in the club, make every reasonable effort to keep things simple and remove obstacles that would get in the way of people enjoying flying at the club field. Consequently, anytime a member brings a new airplane to the flying field, the leadership refrains from pointing out all the things they don't like or would do differently, and instead performs the essential checks to ensure that the plane is airworthy (e.g., CG, correct travels, batteries), and then does their best to get it into the air as soon as possible.

Don't misunderstand me. If you're familiar with 1st U.S. R/C Flight School or my training and setup manuals and articles, you know that I'm a big proponent of doing everything possible to improve performance and therefore speed of learning. Even so, the reality is that many of the improvements that I make to the planes used in the school would barely be detectable by the average club flyer. So the point is, whether it's a

recreational club environment or commercial R/C flight school, the main thing is to get the basics correct, knowing that refinements only help to fine tune airplanes that are fundamentally sound to start

with. Hence, effective leaders know that it is not wise to bring up all the minute ways to "make things better" until a person first has a good handle on the fundamentals. I.e., what good is a slightly more capable radio or gadget going to be if the majority of club members haven't yet mastered the basic setup and operation of the equipment they already have!

3. Another factor contributing to declining club membership is the tendency of the people that everyone looks to for advice to recommend the latest-greatest equipment and setups that line up more with their own interests and ways of doing things, rather than what best lines up with the skills and interests of the members asking for advice. The problem is it won't matter how valid your advice is if it's beyond the abilities of the most of the membership and causes them to become discouraged or give up on flying before realizing any benefit from your advice. On the other hand, effective leaders try to make practical recommendations that they feel will give each member the greatest likelihood of success (sometimes for the simple reason that they're busy and wish to focus on their own stuff rather than having to continually correct peoples' mistakes).

Consider the E-flite Apprentice basic trainer; Veteran modelers typically advise any newbie buying an Apprentice to forgo the basic radio offered with the plane, and instead buy a radio with more features. However, the radio offered with the Apprentice is pre-set by the factory, so all the newcomer has to do is charge the batteries and fly. Those who "upgrade" to a more capable radio now have to overcome the challenge of learning a lot of confusing terminology and how to program it, rather than experiencing the immediate gratification of flying. We all know that learning to program radios has taken over as one of the greatest challenges in the sport, and it is often counterproductive to thrust that daunting task on any newcomer whose motivation for getting into the sport was to have fun (and already has so much else to learn). Of course, at some point they'll have to learn to set up a plane and radio, and possibly even enjoy it, but setting the precedent of expecting to face a complicated process of programming before flying is very intimidating for any newbie, and often erodes their enthusiasm before even getting to fly.

Furthermore, despite many clubs struggling to get and keep new members, many older members continue to frown upon airplanes like the Apprentice that utilize modern 3-axis stabilization technology aimed at making learning to fly much easier and less likely to involve significant repairs. Because some of these planes require unconventional control techniques compared to the way the newbie will eventually fly, veteran modelers will often frame stabilization technology as a crutch and subsequently convince the newbie to turn it off. However, what good does it do to point out that those who learn with the stabilization turned on will have to learn different control techniques in the future, if before they get to that point they become discouraged and quit the sport!

Conversely, active clubs today with a high retention rate never discourage, but rather encourage the use of anything that helps new members get to the point of being able to safely fly on their own whenever they wish. Plus, those systems aimed at speeding up success in the air can usually be diminished or turned off as the pilot's confidence increases and they're no longer needed. Furthermore, since Safe

technology often enables new pilots to solo the first day, it solves the biggest challenge facing clubs for the past 40+ years of finding committed instructors who are available to train on a regular basis.

This concludes Part 1. Next time we'll continue highlighting the tendencies on display at clubs that continue to thrive in the modern era, and conclude with a summary list of actionable strategies aimed at stemming declining club membership and promoting growth.

Fostering a More Active Flying Club in the Modern Era - Part 2

By Dave Scott. Owner/Instructor, 1st U.S. R/C Flight School

Starting approximately 15 years ago, many model airplane clubs started seeing a decline in membership, fewer new people joining, and interested visitors to the flying field often not returning. A trend that continues to this day. That said, I visit a lot of clubs throughout the Midwest and elsewhere on behalf of my flight school, and despite all the standard reasons people give to justify their club's decline, I know of several clubs that are currently thriving. The following article continues contrasting the tendencies on display at clubs that do well at acquiring and retaining members compared to those that have been experiencing declining membership. By doing so, I hope to present several positive strategies to help stem the decline and promote club growth. Note: If you haven't read Part 1, you will need to do so in order to understand the full context and shifting attitudes of R/C pilots in the modern era, and why despite the economy and peoples' changing interests, certain clubs enjoy a large percentage of members that actively fly and therefore continue to thrive.

4. One of the biggest contributors to clubs struggling to retain active flyers is the tendency of the leadership at the field to continually push members to purchase more advanced equipment and increasingly larger airplanes, under the guise that doing so will help them to fly better. While that might be partially true, this has contributed to the phenomena of people leaving their clubs after 4 or 5 seasons when the sport is no longer enjoyable. FYI. These are the former members that no longer attend your club, but they continue to fly parkflyers close to home strictly for fun.

While the club's more experienced members are pitching radios with more features, bigger flies better, and "what the pros use", seldom brought up is the additional complexity associated with those components. Hence, one can visit clubs all across the country and see large numbers of people pre-occupied with learning how to program their radios and operate their equipment instead of actually using it to fly! You'll also notice that within weeks of any member giving into getting a substantially bigger "better" airplane, their attendance tends to drop off. If you question them about it, they'll have a list of excuses about how it's been too windy, they've been too busy and/or it's become more convenient to fly helis and parkflyers closer to home. Yet, the only thing that's different from when they used to attend the club field on a regular basis is that their equipment became appreciably more expensive and complicated to operate, and thus the excitement about going to the flying field has been replaced with the fear of jeopardizing their substantial investment.

We can reassure them that the fear and anxiety does subside and they'll eventually enjoy an elevated sense of satisfaction if they stay at it. Yet, for the vast majority of flyers who got into the sport as a fun hobby, it is rare today to see someone who will remain active in the club when flying is no longer fun. Therefore, another important characteristic of successful clubs is that the leadership never makes members feel as if they are operating inferior equipment or tries to push them to purchase equipment that is out of their comfort zone. If the members are successful with what they have, eventually the grass is greener effect will kick in and they'll choose on their own to take things to the next level, or not. A.k.a., if it ain't broke, don't fix it!

The new reality is that while technology can be wonderful, it has also made people's day to day lives a lot busier. Thus, clubs that are thriving today recognize that many people simply don't have the time to methodically learn all the technical aspects of the sport the way that veteran modelers have always sought to do (heck, a lot of people today don't even have a dedicated place to work on their planes). So, rather than trying to return to the old ways, successful clubs in the modern era are open to all types of flying and support the fact that the only/best option for a lot of people is to fly mainly Ready-To-Fly setups that are easy to store and transport.

As an aside: I know of several clubs that attribute a large part of their decline to RTF parkflyers and helis making it easier for people to fly near home instead. On the other hand, the existence of low cost easy to fly parkflyers has also made it much easier for people to get into the sport, and thus more people are flying R/C models today than ever before. That means that the pool for clubs to draw members from has never been larger. For example, when people reach the limits of what they can do with their simple parkflyers, most guys will start looking at larger more capable airplanes that can also handle more wind, and therefore need to find a bigger flying field as well. It's no different than people saying to me that because it's becoming easier for people to teach themselves, there will no longer be a need for an R/C flight school. In reality, interest in the school has tripled in recent years thanks in part to more people entering the sport. Thus, rather than eliminating the need for clubs, in many cases parkflyers are helping to stem the decline and making it easier for more members to get stick time. So, although it may appear to the veteran members that parkflyers are contributing to less club participation, it is more likely that those clubs simply don't offer much more than what flyers have access to closer to home.

5. Even though I'm a 3D pilot myself, it is easy to see that another major contributor to club members losing interest in flying is the tendency of 3D pilots to encourage those around them, no matter their ability, to purchase 3D airplanes and equipment. Add to that, much of what people read and view online is also aimed at enticing pilots to pursue 3D. The unspoken reality is that learning to fly 3D requires such lightning fast reflexes and endless hours of practice that most flyers will never achieve 3D flying skills. Plus, no one mentions that the tradeoff for setting up a plane for 3D is that it becomes more difficult to fly in general. Furthermore, due to the manufacturers' fixation on maximizing 3D performance, planes have become so lightly constructed that the average sport flyer often can't make it through a weekend without breaking something on landing. Consequently, with so many pilots basing their equipment and setup choices on flying 3D at some point, many end up struggling or hitting a plateau instead, especially when the complicated process of learning to program and trim for 3D turns

out to be much easier said than done. When these realities mount up, those who don't become discouraged and quit can often be seen flying less and less, preferring instead to spend their time making changes to their equipment and getting involved in non-flying club activities.

Now that all this has been said, the following is a summary list of some of the most productive tendencies on display at many of the country's vibrant clubs. Just remember; assuming that there is a willingness to take steps to increase flying activity at your club, don't let the perfect be the enemy of the good! That is, just because you can't do everything that has proven to work for other clubs, giving a few of these strategies a try is certainly better than doing nothing at all.

All successful clubs promote a policy of never allowing a spectator to sit off to the side by themselves, but rather encourages its members to introduce themselves, and if the spectator expresses an obvious interest, invite them to check out the planes and to sit with the members. Furthermore, it's counterproductive to send a new visitor/potential member home with instructions to search for the information they'll need to get started in the sport. Obviously, newbies don't even know what questions to ask yet, so all the printed forms needed to join AMA and the club (even if they'll be joining online), and if possible a printout of a RTF basic trainer, are ready to hand to any interested spectator before they leave.

When talking with a potential member, members refrain from airing dirty laundry and tales of failure. Instead, they accentuate the positives of how technology is making it easier to fly than ever before, and by joining the club he or she will have access to a dedicated flying site and experienced pilots who can offer advice when needed.

As long as a person's equipment is airworthy, leaders of clubs with high retention rates hold off on pointing out everything they would change or improve upon, but do their best to help that person experience the thrill of seeing their airplane in the air as soon as possible.

Unless it's appropriate, leaders of active clubs avoid framing members' equipment as inferior and trying to persuade them to purchase ever more complex/expensive equipment under the guise that it will make them better flyers. Instead, they emphasize that the main things are to have fun within their individual comfort zones, and while good equipment is important, correct practice is a lot more important. (Remember, what someone might refer to as an inferior radio today would have been state of the art a little over a decade ago and entirely capable of fulfilling the needs of 95% of flyers!)

Rather than promoting 3D flying and complex 3D equipment setups as the end all after learning to fly, leaders of successful clubs try to give practical recommendations based on what they feel gives each member the greatest likelihood of success based on their immediate skills and interests. I.e., effective leaders correct the impression that the route to becoming a better pilot is to try to mold yourself after the club's best 3D flyer, but instead hype the fact that the awesome (unique) thing about the hobby is

that there are so many different options available to pilots, and that they can change their interests any time they want.

Maybe my efforts to highlight these tendencies and help stem the 15 year trend of declining club membership will prove to be wishful thinking. However, I make my living in the sport, and I fly large aerobatic airplanes that require well maintained runways, and therefore I have much more than a casual interest in clubs doing well. That said, I have to bring up a couple final observations: Although I'm sure there are exceptions, I know that if a club does not appoint leadership that actively flies, and therefore has a personal stake in maintaining a pilot friendly club, club politics almost always takes over until eventually so many people have been turned off that there are barely enough members to sustain the club.

Furthermore, in order for a club to experience growth, it must have an individual or two in positions of leadership who possess the initiative and/or natural inclination (often as a result of their career backgrounds) to map out a club mission statement along with a step-bystep plan of action aimed at cultivating an active fun flying club.

Thus, whenever people in the area hear about the club and decide to check it out, they will encounter an appealing club that looks like it would be fun to be involved with. The reason that it takes this type of leader is because the turnaround or growth often doesn't happen right away. Consequently, throughout the process, some members will likely try to sabotage the leadership's efforts because, from the sidelines, they think they know better. That's when having a plan in place helps keep things moving toward the club's stated objectives, rather than allowing the diversions common to any group undertaking from sapping everyone's enthusiasm. Of course, there are many other things that successful clubs are doing, e.g., attractive websites, community involvement, etc., but it all starts with getting the basics right of fostering an environment that promotes flying and encourages people to have fun and pursue their own particular interests.

Dave Scott is a champion full-scale aerobatic competitor, airshow pilot, and founder of 1st U.S. R/C Flight School. His articles and books feature

the training techniques he developed during the professional instruction of over 1700 R/C pilots of all skill levels. More information about his books and flight school can be found at http://www.rcflightschool.com/